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Corporate Vision 
To be the center of excellence in deposit protection.

Mission stateMent
To protect deposits, enhance public confidence and stability in the financial system by promoting sound 

business practices. 

 

our Values 
To achieve the above, the Deposit Protection Corporation is guided by the following core values.

CorPorate VIsIon, mIssIon and Values

Accountability 
We take full ownership and responsibility for our actions. We adhere to sound corporate governance 

principles and are disciplined in thought and conduct.

Fairness
We fairly implement our mandates and treat all our stakeholders with equity. We create a level playing 

field that allows every stakeholder to contribute to economic development. 

Teaming
We are co-operative. We are open to different views and we value diversity. We listen and share ideas. 

We recognize and work with partners to accomplish our goals. We continually raise our interpersonal 

skills and positively interact to deliver breakthrough results. We value and engage our stakeholders and 

publics. 

Integrity
We hold ourselves up to the highest ethical and professional standards. We conduct ourselves in a 

transparent and ethical manner. We are honest and serve with diligence and commitment.   

Excellence
We are exemplary and model the way in our business. We exceed expectations. We are committed and 

always give our best. We develop a reputation for excellence in all we do.

Transparency
We hold ourselves to the highest level of openness in whatever we do and will disseminate all information 

necessary to enable our stakeholders to make informed decisions in their dealings with us. 
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ChaIrman’s statement

It gives me great pleasure to present the tenth Annual Report and Statement of Accounts of the Deposit Protection 

Corporation (DPC) for the twelve months to 31 December 2013, the highlights of which are summarised below. 

The rest of the report will highlight major activities of the Board during the review period.

MaJor HiGHliGHts For tHe auDiteD FinanCial stateMents
for the 12 months ended 31 December 2013

2013 us$ 2012 us$

13 082 637 2 552 423

328 516 499 827

20% 99%

10 107 632 26 178

13 196 239 2 995 584

11 995 515 1 887 883

Total income

Provision for protection payments

Cost to income ratio

Surplus for the period

Total assets

Accumulated Surplus

The DPC is a statutory body which derives its mandate from the Deposit Protection Act [Chapter 24:29] enacted 
in March 2012. The Corporation was until the enactment of the new Act previously known as the Deposit 
Protection Board (DPB) and started operations on 1 July 2003. It was previously governed by Section XII of the 
Banking Act [Chapter 24:20] as well as the Banking (Deposit Protection) Regulations Statutory Instrument 29 of 
2003. Its main purpose is to build depositor confidence and foster stability in the country’s banking industry, a 
function which complements efforts by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe and the Ministry of Finance.

The banking sector remained generally sound, notwithstanding the cancellation of Trust Banking Corporation 
licence on 6 December 2013. Interfin Merchant Bank remained under curatorship. 

The sector continues to be negatively affected by the absence of lender of last resort and vibrant interbank 
market functions which has exacerbated liquidity challenges. Loans and advances remain short term in nature 
catering for working capital against the much needed capital investment. Banking sector insurable deposits 
declined by 10% from $4.2 billion as at 31 December 2012 to $3.8 billion as at 31 December 2013. This was 
due to the contraction of the macro economy and political uncertainty arising from the election. 

The financial performance of the DPC was buoyed by the removal of the premium cap that saw premium income 
rising by 336% from $2.5 million in 2012 to $10.9 million in 2013. The income was also boosted by penalty 

Dr. S. Mahlahla 
Acting Chairman 
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ChaIrman’s statement

income that was levied against member institutions for premium payment delays.  The surplus for the year was 
$10.1 million compared to $26 178 that was achieved in previous year.
 
Dr. G Gono resigned as Chairman of the Board after his retirement as Governor of the Reserve Bank. I wish to 
commend him for his sterling efforts as Chairman of the Board since 2004. There were no other changes to the 
Board of Directors of the DPC during the review period. 

Finally, let me take this opportunity to commend the Board of Directors, management and staff of the DPC for 
their loyalty and dedication to duty without which the achievements recorded during the period under review 
would not have been possible. I wish them success in their endeavours to meet their goals during the coming 
year.

Dr. s. MaHlaHla
aCtinG CHairMan
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ChIef eXeCutIVe offICer’s foreWord

Mr. J. M. Chikura
Chief Executive Officer

The economic environment in 2013 was very difficult due to persistent liquid challenges, low industrial capacity 

utilization, electricity supply constraints and declining commodity prices on the international market.  

The banking sector was faced with mounting non-performing loans and liquidity challenges. Trust Banking 

Corporation had its licence cancelled on 6 December 2013 after the bank was found to be financially unsound 

and its failure to meet minimum capital levels. Interfin Merchant Bank remained under curatorship and this has 

since been extended to 31 December 2014.  

The cap on premiums was removed with effect from 1 January 2013 and the increase of the cover level from 

US$150 to US$500 became effective on the same date.  The special premium levy of $7.6 million that had 

been provided for in the 2013 National Budget was scrapped in the 2014 National Budget. The levy was meant 

to go towards the capitalisation of the Corporation.

 

At the end of the year, the accumulated surplus stood at US$11.9 million after making a provision of US$0.3 

million for protection payments. The financial position of the coming year could have been better had the special 

levy not been scrapped.

I wish to attribute the success of the DPC achieved during the review period to the continued support we 

received from all stakeholders involved notably, Government, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe, contributory 

institutions, depositors at large and the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI).

I also want to thank the DPC staff, management and the Board of Directors for a sterling job in keeping the 

organization on track towards the achievement of its objectives.

JoHn M. CHiKura
CHieF eXeCutiVe oFFiCer
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operating environment
 

The high levels of economic growth witnessed from 

2009 to 2011 were difficult to maintain in 2013. This 

was on the back of persistent liquidity challenges, low 

capacity utilisation, limited cash portfolio and foreign 

direct investment, inadequate foreign currency 

generating capacity, retreating commodity prices, 

power outages, tight fiscal space and increasing 

non-performing loans.  

The world economy has shown signs of recovery 

though growth will not be uniform across regions 

BusIness oPeratIons

maCroeConomIC enVIronment

globally. At the international level, the recovery process 

has been slow, negatively affecting the mineral 

prices on the international market. The country’s 

balance of trade continues to worsen due to over-

reliance on imports as the country suffers from de-

industrialisation due to the adverse macroeconomic 

environment. Long outstanding obligations with 

various international financial institutions have 

constrained the country’s capacity to getting financial 

resources to undertake developmental projects. 
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gross domestic Product (gdP)
 

Over and above the adverse macroeconomic 

environment, the year 2013 was characterised by a 

number of socio-political events which required huge 

funding against limited budgetary resources. These 

included the referendum and harmonised elections. 

Devotion of resources to these events overshadowing 

normal economic activity. The numerous challenges 

slowed down economic activity, which remained 

positive, and is estimated to have expanded by 3.4% 

a decline from 4.4% recorded in 2012.

  
Inflation

 

The country continued to experience low inflation 
levels after recording an annual inflation rate of 
2.51% in January 2013 and 0.33% in December 
2013. Monthly inflation was on a declining trend from 
0.07%% at the beginning of the year to a negative 
0.08% at the end of the year. The average annual 
inflation in 2013 was 1.64% whilst monthly inflation 
was ranging from -0.21% to 0.95%. The downward 
trend can be explained by low levels of real effective 
demand for goods and services in the local market, 
which in turn is a result of limited cash portfolio and 
foreign direct investment, low export inflows, the 
gaping budget deficit due to liquidity problems, the 
weakening of the rand which helps to keep a lid on 
exchange rate pass through effect, and also the low 
income levels prevailing in the economy which are 
insignificant to influence real demand. 

International association of deposit Insurers

 

Deposit Protection Corporation is an active member 
of the International Association of Deposit Insurers 
(IADI) based in Switzerland. IADI was formed in 2002 
and provides members, associates and partners 
with a platform to gather and share knowledge and 
expertise on financial markets with the objective 
of achieving financial stability. Through its various 
committees it provides training and educational 
programs and produces research and guidance on 
matters related to deposit insurance.  

Benefits of a deposit Protection system 

The benefits of a Deposit Protection Scheme (DPS) 
accrue to both o and banks. By insuring the deposits, 
a DPS fosters confidence in the banking system, 
prevents self-fulfilling panics or bank runs thereby 
reducing the likelihood of contagion and cascading 
defaults. A DPS reduces financial uncertainty, 
thereby promoting financial intermediation, and 
enhancing economic and financial stability. Deposit 
protection promotes competition by levelling the 
playing field. Larger banks due to their size, track 
record & brand visibility have an edge over smaller 
institutions in attracting deposits at lower interest 
rates. A DPS, therefore, makes depositors of smaller 
banks feel safe and protected and hence neutralize 
the advantages of larger banks over them. Some 
Deposit Protection Systems have mandates and 
resources that enable them to inject liquidity and 
capital in distressed contributory institutions to avert 
bank failures.  

Benefits to depositors include free membership, 
loss minimization, enhanced financial inclusion, 
orderly and prompt reimbursement. A DPS helps to 
minimise losses to small depositors (the majority) 
who are most affected by bank closures, and lack 
resources & skills to monitor contributory institutions. 
Regarding free membership, there is no direct charge 
to depositors as banks pay the premiums to a DPS. 
Depositors do not apply or fill in forms, as deposit 
protection is automatic once a depositor opens an 
account with a member bank.  

Establishment of a DPS catering for both individual 
and well-to-do corporate clients, as opposed to a 
scheme for small depositors alone, helps promote 
financial inclusion by reducing incidences of 
deliberate financial exclusion. A DPS with a resolution 
mandate provides orderly exit for failed banks; prompt 
refund; and protects interests of large depositors 
and creditors through the liquidation process. 

DPC’s enhanced roles are complementary to those 
of the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ) as they 
serve the same objective of contributing to financial 
stability. Accordingly, the law requires DPC to 
exercise its mandate in consultation with RBZ. While 
some see DPC involvement as duplication of effort, 
there is potential to enhance alertness of the safety 
net players in several ways including: eliminating 
existence of a single point of failure, enhanced 
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regulatory objectivity, accountability transparency, 
and reduced opportunities for regulatory arbitrage, 
failure or capture. Internationally, coordination and 
co-operation among safety net players is further 
enhanced via mutually agreed memoranda of 
understanding.  

recent developments in deposit Protection

 

The recent Global Financial Crisis has resulted in 

significant developments in the area of deposit 

insurance. Major changes include the following:  

i) Higher Coverage Levels - The crisis prompted an 

increase in coverage limits in some jurisdictions. 

The European Union (EU) coverage limit currently 

stands at 100 000 euros per individual whilst in 

the USA, the limit is at US$250 000; 

ii) Elimination of co-insurance - most jurisdictions 

have moved away from the concept of co-

insurance; 

iii) Integrated Deposit Protection Scheme - Most 

jurisdictions in Europe and Asia have introduced 

Integrated Protection Schemes to provide 

protection to insurance policyholders, depositors 

and investors in banks and non-bank financial 

institutions like asset managers and stockbrokers; 

iv) From Pay-box to Risk Minimisation Mandate - 

Several deposit insures have had their mandates 

widened from pay-box to loss minimiser or risk 

minimiser thereby, in the latter role, assuming 

an explicit financial stability mandate involving 

on-site and off-site prudential oversight 

responsibilities as well as assuming a full suite of 

resolution powers. Examples of jurisdictions with 

deposit insurers whose mandates have been 

broadened to include risk minimisation include 

Kenya and Nigeria. 

v) Flat Premium Rate versus Risk Based Premium 

Rate - Risk based premium regimes fosters 

discipline among institutions. 

vi) Single Customer View Concept - Historically, most 

Deposit Protection Systems faced the following 

challenges when making reimbursements: lack 

of access to depositor records in advance of 

a failure and poor quality of depositor records 

at banks. Some have pro-actively introduced 

mandatory re-configuration of banking institutions 

IT infrastructure to provide a single customer 

view perspective. 

vii) Core Principles of Effective Deposit Insurance 

Systems - Following the report of the Financial 

Stability Forum on Enhancing Market and 

Institutional Resilience (April 2008), a set of 

core principles for effective deposit insurance 

systems were developed by Basel Committee on 

Banking Supervision (BCBS) and the International 

Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI). The core 

principles are broadly categorized into ten 

groups as follows: setting objectives; mandates 

and powers; governance; relationships with 

other safety-net participants and cross-border 

issues; membership and coverage; funding; 

public awareness; selected legal issues; failure 

resolution; and reimbursing depositors and 

recoveries. These set of principles help deposit 

insurers to fully execute their mandates and 

effectively contribute to financial stability. The 

Corporation is putting measures to ensure that it 

complies with the set principles. 
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financial sector performance

 

The financial services sector remained generally 
sound, notwithstanding the cancellation of Trust 
Bank by the Reserve Bank on the 6th of December 
2013. Interfin Merchant Bank remained under 
curatorship tentatively up to 31 December 2014. The 
absence of a vibrant interbank market and a lender 
of last resort in 2013 exacerbate liquidity challenges 
over the period. During the review period the sector 
suffered from high levels of non-performing loans 
as most companies were unable to meet their loan 
obligations.

membership 

During 2013, the number of institutions insured by 
the Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) declined 
from 24 to 23 following the cancellation of Trust 
Bank Corporation’s operating licence by the Reserve 
Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ) on 6 December 2013. The 
licence was cancelled by the Registrar of Banks in 
terms of Section 14 of the Banking Act [Chapter 
24:20] for the following reasons: 

i) The bank was financially unsound as its net 

assets were no longer sufficient to safeguard its 

creditors;  

ii) The institution could no longer maintain the 

prescribed minimum amounts of capital and 

reserves; and 

iii) The institution was engaged in undesirable 

methods of conducting business in violation of 

the Banking Act.

As at 31 December 2013 membership to the 
Deposit Protection Fund consisted of seventeen 
(17) commercial banks, two (2) merchant banks 
and four (4) building societies. These are banking 
institutions registered in terms of the Banking Act 
[Chapter 24:20] and the Building Societies Act 
[Chapter 24:02]. 

oPeratIons durIng the year

deposit Insurance funding 

Premium contributions from member institutions 
remained the main source of funding for the 
Corporation’s operations during the year. Other 
funding sources include earnings from investments 
and funds levied as penalties from defaulting 
member institutions. A flat rate premium assessment 
system remained in use to determine the insurance 
premiums payable by each member institution. 
The premium rate remained pegged at 0.3% of 
an institution’s annual average deposits, payable 
quarterly, while the cap of a minimum and maximum 
annual premium payable amounts of $2 000 and 
$120 000 per bank was scrapped. The cap on the 
amount an institution can pay as deposit insurance 
premium was removed to allow the corporation to 
build a deposit insurance fund capable of meeting its 
obligations given the mounting challenges at member 
institutions emanating from the illiquid macro-
economic conditions. Furthermore, the removal 
of the cap was a way of restoring equity as far as 
premium contributions were concerned, as each 
member institution’s contribution was dependent on 
the value of deposits on its balance sheet.  

Total assessed premium income for the year 
increased by 336% from $2.5 million for the year 
ended 2012 to $10.9 million for the comparative 
period in 2013. The significant increase in the 
assessed premium income is attributed to removal 
of the cap on the maximum payable premium 
contribution explained above. 

  

deposit Insurance Coverage 

In 2013, the Corporation provided full insurance 
cover of up to US$500.00 per depositor per bank 
against loss of depositors’ funds in the event of a 
bank failure. The insurance cover of US$500.00 was 
more than treble compared to that of US$150.00 
that prevailed in 2012. The insurance cover was 
reviewed upwards as part of the Corporation’s drive 
to build depositors’ confidence in the banking sector 
in fulfilment of its mandate to contribute towards the 
stability of the banking sector. Demand, savings, 
time, class B and class C shares constituted the 
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insurable deposits. At this cover level, at least 92.2% of depositors’ accounts were covered in full with deposits 
valued at $55.2 million. This was in line with the target public objective of covering at least 90% of depositors’ 
accounts in full. The comparable numbers of depositors covered in full and partially are shown in table 1 below. 

Table 1: Deposit Insurance Coverage
 

 deCemBer 2013 perCentage deCemBer 2012 perCentage 

Total Number of Deposit Accounts  2 119 501 100%  1 139 048  100% 

Total Number of  Deposit Accounts 

Fully Covered
 1 955 118  92.2%  852 109  74.8% 

Total Number of  Deposit Accounts 

Partially Covered
 164 383  7.8%  286 946   25.2% 

Value of Deposits in Fully Covered 

Accounts. 

  US$55.2 

million 
1.5% 

 US$16.5 

million 
   0.4% 

Value of Deposits in Partially 

Covered Accounts 
US$3.7 billion  98.5%  US$4.1 billion  99.6% 

 Total Value of Insured Deposits 
  US$137.4 

million 
 3.7% 

US$134.6 

million 
  3.2% 

 total Value of deposits  us$3.8 billion  100%  us$4.2 billion  100% 

 

The total number of depositor accounts increased by 86.1% from 1,139,048 as at 31 December 2012 to 

2,119,501 as at 31 December 2013. The sharp increase in the total number of the depositor accounts was 

mainly due to the introduction of EcoSave, a mobile linked savings product launched by Steward Bank during 

the year. The launch of this savings product had a huge impact in as far as deepening financial inclusion in the 

country was concerned.   

deposit growth.  

Total deposits eligible for DPC premiums declined from $4.2 billion as at 31 December 2012 to $3.8 billion as 

at 31 December 2013. The decline in total deposits mirrored the contraction in the macro-economy caused 

by the general illiquid market conditions and political uncertainty leading to the harmonised elections that took 

place during the year. Figure 1 below shows the deposit growth trend at member institutions during the year. 

Figure 1: Deposit Growth at Member Institutions

4000

3500

3000

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

JAN FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN  JUL   AUG  SEPT  OCT  NOV  DEC

Building Societies

US$
(million)

Merchant Banks Commercial Banks 2013



DPC AnnuAl RepoRt 2013

15

distribution and average deposit sizes  

The commercial bank sub-sector recorded the lowest 

average deposit size of $1,721 as at 31 December 

2013, down from $4,326 as at 31 December 2012. 

The decline is mainly attributed to the 118.9% 

increase in depositor accounts in the sub-sector from 

830,496 as at 31 December 2012 to 1,817,649 as 

at 31 December 2013 resulting from the introduction 

of EcoSave, against a relatively stable deposit 

growth. Building Societies recorded an increase 

in the average deposit size from $1,442 as at 31 

December 2012 to $1,813 as at 31 December 2013 

mainly due to an increase in the sub-sector’s total 

deposits. On aggregate the market average deposit 

Commercial

2013 2012
No. of Institutions 17 18

No. of Accounts 1 817 649 830 496

Total Deposits ($m) 3 127.3 3 592.6

Average Deposit Size ($) 1 721 4 326

Building societies

2013 2012
No. of Institutions 4 4

No. of Accounts 297 166 304 814

Total Deposits ($m) 538.9 439.5

Average Deposit Size ($) 1 813 1 442

merchant

2013 2012
No. of Institutions 17 18

No. of Accounts 1 817 649 830 496

Total Deposits ($m) 3 127.3 3 592.6

Average Deposit Size ($) 1 721 4 326

market aggregate

2013 2012
No. of Institutions 23 24

No. of Accounts 2 119 501 1 139 048

Total Deposits ($m) 3 762.5 4 152.2

Average Deposit Size ($) 1 775 3 650

size declined from $3 650 in December 2012 to 

$1 775 as at 31 December 2013. The decline can 

be explained by the rapid increase in the number 

of depositors’ accounts with relatively low balances 

and the withdrawal of funds from the banking sector 

due to market anxiety in the period leading to the 

harmonised elections. Knowledge of the average 

size and distribution of deposits in the industry helps 

the Corporation to keep track of the demographics of 

small and unsophisticated depositors. Table 2 below 

shows the distribution of deposits by sector as at 31 

December 2013.

Table 2: Comparable Distribution and Average size of Deposits by Sector  
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market share of deposits by sector 

The banking sector’s deposits remained concentrated in the commercial bank sub-sector as reflected by its 

market share of 83.1%, a marginal decline from 86.4% recorded as at 31 December 2012. For a second year 

running the Building Society sub-sector increased its market share at the expense of both the Commercial and 

Merchant bank sub-sectors as shown in figure 2 below. 

 

Figure 2: Comparable Deposit Market Share per Sector. 

  

deposit Composition   
Demand deposits which are generally transitory in nature and volatile amounted to $2 billion as at 31 December 

2013, representing 54.3% of the total deposits. 

Figure 3 (on page 17) illustrates the composition of deposits at member institutions as at 31 December 2013. 

Time and savings deposits accounted for 30.2% and 9.3%, respectively of the total deposits during the year 

under review. The general illiquid conditions and contracting economic performance that prevailed during the 

year militated against the attainment of quality savings. 

 

Bank liquidations & deposit reimbursements  
One of the key mandates of a deposit insurance system is the obligation to make timely reimbursements to 

depositors when a bank is closed. A deposit insurer’s effectiveness, efficiency and capability to meet this 

mandate is critical for financial stability and confidence in the banking system. In pursuance of its mandate, 

as at 31 December 2013, the Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) had compensated depositors of five 

failed banking institutions, which were subjected to liquidation, namely: Century Discount House (CDH), Rapid 

Discount House (RDH); Sagit Finance House (SFH); Genesis Investment Bank and Royal Bank.  

Payments to Genesis, Royal, and Trust depositors are still on-going. We urge all those depositors who have 

not yet submitted their claims to get in touch with us. 
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Figure 3: Deposit Composition  

Bank name date 
closed

total insured 
deposits 

(Value)

insured 
deposits 

paid (value)

% of 
value 
paid

the total 
no. of 

depositors

no. of 
depositors 

paid

% depositors 
paid

Outstanding 
depositors

CDH 02.1.04 Z$63, 266 Z$33,900 54% 397 178 45% 219

RDH 26.3.04 Z$182,847 Z$83,287 45% 1,215 472 39% 743

SFH 02.3.06 Z$12,2 million Z$11,5 million 94% 3,003 2,832 94% 171

SUBTOTAL Z$12,5 million Z$11,6 million 4,615 3,482 1,133

Royal Bank 27.7.12 US$472,206 US$341,180 72% 5,453 3,065 56% 2 388

Genesis Bank 11.6.12 US$ 11,800 US$8,031 68% 85 56 66% 29

SUBTOTAL US$484,006 US$349,211 5,538 3,121 2 417

tOtaL 10 153  6 603 3 550

Table 3: Deposit Insurance Payments: 2 January 2004- 31 December 2013

Table 3 provides a synopsis of deposit insurance 

payments in respect of the failed contributory 

institutions 

In view of current legislative framework, no 

compensations were made to depositors of failed 

banking institutions whose resolution methods did 

not entail liquidation. These are NDH, High Veld, 

Intermarket Bank, Intermarket Discount House, 

Original Trust Bank, Royal Bank and Barbican 

Bank, whose assets were sold to ZABG in 2005. 

Some banking institutions also failed prior to the 

establishment of the Corporation, namely the Bank 

of Credit and Commerce International (BCCI); United 

Merchant Bank (UMB), Universal Merchant Bank 

(UniBank), First National Building Society (FNBS), 

and Zimbabwe Building Society (ZBS). 
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During the year 2013, DPC reimbursed 3,121 

Genesis and Royal Bank depositors a total amount 

of $349,211.00. Compensation of depositors of 

these two banks is still in progress. Trust Bank was 

closed on 6 December 2013 and as at 31 December 

2013, deposit insurance payments had not yet 

commenced. 

depositor Profile

At least 5,050 out of 5,453, that is 93% Royal Bank 

depositors will be paid in full once they file-in their 

claims. At least a total of 2,570 out of 2,958 Trust 

Bank depositors i.e. 87% depositors will be paid 

in full once they file their claims. This is in line with 

DPC’s strategic objective of paying at least 90% of 

depositors in full. 

response rate 

As at 31 December 2013, a cumulative total of 6,603 

out of 10,153 depositors had benefited from the 

deposit protection scheme. In other words, 65% of 

the eligible depositors have received compensation 

from DPC since its inception. To date, DPC has used 

various communication strategies like sending bulk 

SMS to individual depositors, press adverts and 

direct phone calls to depositors. Depositors have 

been paid using bank transfers, cash and through 

mobile platforms like EcoCash and TeleCash. 

One of the major hindrances in contacting depositors 

has been the poor quality of depositor records at 

banks such that the contact details like addresses, 

phone numbers and emails are not up to date. This is 

a major challenge which negatively affects the pay-

out response rate. Furthermore, most depositors with 

small balances are reluctant to submit their claims 

whilst some corporates with balances above the 

insurable amount would rather wait for the liquidation 

process than submit claims for the maximum 

insurable amount of $US500.00.

legislative Changes to facilitate effective 
reimbursement 

In terms of the IADI Core Principles for Effective 

deposit insurance systems, the deposit insurance 

system should give depositors prompt access to their 

insured funds and the deposit insurer should also 

be provided with access to depositor information in 

advance. An important pre-condition to an effective 

reimbursement process is to have in place legislative 

authority that supports and facilitates a prompt 

reimbursement. 

In this regard, DPC reviewed its deposit protection 

regulations in order to strengthen its operational 

readiness and efficiency. Some of the key provisions of 

the regulations which will enhance the reimbursement 

process relate to prompt reimbursement of insured 

deposits and advance access to depositor records 

by the deposit insurer. The Deposit Protection 

Corporation Regulations were gazetted through 

statutory instrument 156 of 2013. 

a. Prompt access to Insured deposits 
Some of the provisions in the regulations which 

will ensure depositors have prompt access to their 

insured funds include; immediate payment of insured 

depositors upon license cancellation or payment of 

insured depositors during curatorship. In situations 

where there may be extended delays in reimbursements 

due to some court processes, the Corporation can 

make advance, interim or emergency partial payments 

in terms of the DPC regulations. 

Reimbursement delays to insured depositors of failed 

banks may affect the broader public confidence in 

both the deposit protection scheme and the stability 

of the financial system. 

b. advance access to depositor records by dPC 
The review of the DPC regulations enhances DPC’s 

legislative authority to have access to depositor 

records before a bank closure. In terms section 12 of 

the DPC 2013 Regulations, all contributory institutions 

are now required to provide the Corporation with 

details of depositor accounts in a prescribed format 

in preparation for a depositor pay out.  

It is critical that the deposit insurer should have 

access to the necessary depositor information 

before a bank is closed as this shortens the time for 

completing the reimbursement process and helps 
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preserve public confidence. Furthermore, a deposit 

insurer should have access to depositor records 

at all times and undertake preparatory reviews of 

bank deposit liability records to ensure prompt and 

accurate reimbursement of insured deposits. There 

is also a risk that depositor information could be 

manipulated if the period between a bank closure 

and a deposit insurer’s access to depositor records 

is too long, thus complicating the reimbursement and 

liquidation process. 

This is also in line with section 52 of the DPC Act 

[Chapter 24:29] which empowers DPC to carry 

out special examinations in preparation of a pay-

out. Preparatory examinations also enable DPC to 

determine the resources required during a pay-out or 

liquidation. 

c. single Customer View 
Many deposit insurers face challenges of accessing 

depositor records before a bank closure due to poor 

quality of depositor records at banks, absence of 

enabling legal framework and inability of banks to 

provide depositor records in desired time frames. It 

should be noted that the impediments highlighted 

above also arise due to the absence of a standard 

depositor profile format with unique identifiers 

applicable to deposit insurers. 

Towards this end, one important reform that is being 

implemented in several jurisdictions is to develop a 

Single Customer View (SCV). A SCV is defined as 

a holistic view of all deposit accounts eligible for 

deposit insurance coverage for a single depositor 

using unique identifiers. It can also be defined as a 

consolidated, consistent, single view of an eligible 

claimant’s aggregate protected deposits with the 

relevant deposit taker which contains all the key 

information required by a deposit insurer to effect a 

pay-out.  

This service enables the integration of customer data 

from multiple sources into a single file, and thereby 

forming a single view of the customer. Adoption of 

the SCV format by banks will also obviate the need 

for depositors to fill claim forms in order to be paid. 

It is important to note that whereas the SCV is 

not necessarily a real time system, deposit taking 

institutions will need to be able to provide a SCV 

within 72 hours of RBZ or the DPC notifying them that 

one is required for pay-out or for other purposes as 

required by the regulatory authorities.  

Going forward the DPC will engage with all member 

institutions to ensure that they reconfigure their IT 

infrastructure to provide for ready access to a reliable 

and consistent view of aggregate deposits for each 

eligible depositor per deposit taking institution to 

facilitate faster pay out in the event of a bank failure.  

Deposit taking institutions would be required to 

ensure the existence, completeness and accuracy of 

all data required for each depositor. To expedite the 

reimbursement process, a deposit insurer should rely 

on technology-based systems to process depositor 

information in a systematic and accurate manner. The 

implementation and adoption of the Single Customer 

View concept by our banking sector will go a long 

way in enhancing data integrity in our banking sector. 

It is envisaged that by the end of 2016, all banking 

institutions would have adopted the Single Customer 

View Concept. 

financial Inclusion and Consumer Protection
In most jurisdictions, lack of access to financial 

services among the poor is being addressed through 

new channels and technologies, including micro-

finance institutions and mobile banking. DPC is poised 

to play a key role in expanding financial access to the 

small unsophisticated depositors through extension 

of deposit insurance to deposit taking micro-finance 

banks, promoting financial literacy and exploring 

measures to enhance the protection of users of 

mobile banking products.

a. micro-finance Banks
The Microfinance Act was promulgated in 2013 and 

it has provisions for the licensing and supervision 

of deposit taking micro finance banks in order 

to eradicate financial exclusion. In recent years, 

there has been an increased realization throughout 

the world that micro finance plays a critical role in 
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economic development and poverty alleviation. 

In terms of the Micro-finance Act, it is now mandatory 

for every deposit-taking micro-finance institution to 

be a member of the Deposit Protection Scheme. 

The provision of deposit insurance to deposit taking 

micro-finance banks will encourage small savers to 

use the formal banking system thereby promoting 

financial inclusion of small unsophisticated 

depositors. 

b. Promoting financial literacy 
Access to deposit insurance provides a measure of 

protection to small savers, provided they are informed 

about safe methods of saving their money. DPC 

intends to intensify its public awareness initiatives in 

order to improve financial literacy by informing small 

savers about safe methods of keeping money and 

promoting the use of mainstream banking system. 

Furthermore, DPC will continue to complement the 

initiatives of other key stakeholders like the Bankers 

Association of Zimbabwe, the Consumer Council 

of Zimbabwe and the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe 

in order to promote financial literacy and better 

informed depositors. Adequate consumer protection 

and financial education contribute to a stable and 

efficient banking industry. 

c. Protection of mobile Banking Customers  
The proliferation of mobile banking products has 

presented regulators with the challenge of how to 

regulate mobile banking and protect consumers. 

Financial inclusion initiatives should recognize the 

importance of striking the right balance between 

controlling risks and encouraging and embracing 

innovation that promote financial inclusion. In the 

wake of technological innovations there is need 

for the development of a consumer protection 

framework for mobile banking customers as they are 

currently not covered under the current provisions 

of the Deposit Protection Corporation Act [Chapter 

24:29]. 

Of special concern to deposit insurers is whether 

to treat e-money as a savings product or simply as 

a funds transfer, and where the liability for payment 

resides at all points in the funds transfer process. 

Issues relating to membership, funding and the 

deposit insurer’s risk exposure to mobile banking 

clients will all need clarity before coming up with 

a deposit protection framework for mobile banking 

products. The DPC is in the process of engaging 

other key stakeholders with a view to develop a 

compensation framework for holders of e-money. 

The International Association of Deposit Insurers 

(IADI) is also currently seized with the issue of devel-

oping a compensation framework for users of mobile 

banking products. 

d. micro-finance advisory Council 
DPC is an active member of the Microfinance 

Advisory Council (MAC) which was established in 

January 2013. Members of the MAC are mainly 

drawn from DPC, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe 

(RBZ), Ministry of Finance, Securities and Exchange 

Commission (SEC), Bankers Association of 

Zimbabwe (BAZ), Consumer Council of Zimbabwe 

(CCZ), Insurance and Pensions Commission (IPEC), 

Zimbabwe Association of Micro-finance Institutions 

(ZAMFI) and other development partners. 

Some of the key terms of reference of the MAC are: 

 ▪ Advise the government on strategies and policies 

for the development of the micro-finance sector, 

promote financial inclusion through encouraging 

and facilitating the development of innovative 

financial products and delivery channels. 

 ▪ Promote professionalism, integrity, accountability, 

dissemination of best practices in the microfinance 

sector, and  

 ▪ Exchange information on the risks associated 

with new technologies that could potentially 

impact financial sector integrity and consumer 

confidence. 

 ▪ During the year 2012/3, DPC participated in the 

various meetings and workshops organized by 

MAC. DPC will continue to play an active role 

in the activities of MAC in order to protect the 

marginalized members of society through a 
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credible deposit insurance system and promote 

financial literacy which will help build public 

confidence and raise demand for financial 

services. 

 

Problem Bank resolution 

When dealing with problem banks, regulators em-

ploy a range of resolution strategies to turn around 

the ailing institutions. These may include a merger 

or acquisition involving a healthy bank; a purchase 

and assumption transaction; open bank assistance, 

bail-in and bridge bank techniques. If no investor is 

willing to step in, or if the reimbursement of depos-

itors is less costly than other options, repayment of 

depositors and liquidation are unavoidable. During 

the review period, two banks (Royal Bank and Trust 

Banking Corporation) were placed under provisional 

liquidation by the High Court and DPC was appoint-

ed liquidator of the institutions. 

a. genesis Investment Bank                                
(In final liquidation)  

Genesis Bank was placed in final liquidation on 

8 August 2012. Genesis Bank (in liquidation) 

Statement of Affairs depicts verified total assets of 

$2.2 million and $5.1 million in liabilities while proved 

claims amount to $2 594170.80. Debt collection for 

a loan book of about $1.4 million is still in progress 

and the lawyers are at various stages in pursuit of 

the outstanding debtors. 

As at 31 December 2013, DPC had declared a first 

interim liquidation dividend to creditors of Genesis 

Investment Bank. 

The distribution of the First Interim Liquidation and 

Distribution Account was authorized by the Master 

of the High Court on 10 May 2013. Gross receipts 

from recoveries and asset disposals amounted to 

$180 828.33 whilst liquidation expenses amounted 

to $77 192.67 leaving a net amount available for 

distribution to preferred creditors of $103 635.66. 

An amount of $90 909.10 was paid to preferred 

creditors whilst the balance of $12 726.56 was 

carried forward to the Second Liquidation and 

Distribution Account. No payments were made to 

con-current creditors in the first distribution account 

due to insufficient funds. 

b. royal Bank limited (In Provisional liquidation)  
Royal Bank was closed on 27 July 2012 and placed 

under provisional liquidation on 20 February 2013. 

The former Royal Bank shareholders opposed the 

liquidation. The High Court has reserved judgment 

since 17 December 2013 and at the time of writing 

no judgment had been delivered to the detriment of 

depositors, employees, creditors as well as confi-

dence in the banking system. 

A verification exercise conducted by DPC indicate 

that Royal Bank had assets of $5,290,610.71 and 

liabilities of $12,674,386.00 as at 20 February 

2013. 

c. trust Bank Corporation (order set aside) 
Trust Bank Corporation (Trust Bank) was closed by 

the RBZ on 6 December 2013 and the bank was 

subsequently placed under Provisional Liquidation 

on 18 December 2013 pending final liquidation. The 

bank’s former shareholders however opposed the 

move. 

The Courts have since set aside the order on account 

of some technical deficiencies. The effect of that 

order is that DPC can no longer act as the provisional 

liquidator of the bank, neither can it handle any issues 

on behalf of TBC. The developments have created 

a vacuum in terms of who takes responsibility on 

Trust issues. A verification exercise conducted by 

DPC indicate that Trust Bank’s assets were valued 

at $16,350,788 with liabilities of $20,466,033 as at 

06 December 2013. 

d. Interfin Bank limited (under Curatorship) 
Interfin Bank was placed under curatorship on 11 

June 2012 and on 9 June 2013, the RBZ further 

extended the curatorship period to 31 December 

2014. According to the RBZ, the extension was 

necessitated by the need to allow the Curator to 

conclude capitalization and loan recovery initiatives. 

As at 31 December 2013, the Curator had not yet 
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found an investor to inject capital into the bank. We 

await the Curator’s further advices with regards to 

whether there are any prospects for the bank to be 

resuscitated.

review of Bank resolution framework 
In carrying out its duties, the Corporation has 

encountered material deficiencies in the current 

problem bank resolution framework militating against 

attainment of finality and speedy resolution of failing 

or failed institutions. 

In some jurisdictions, litigation by former shareholders 

does not result in suspension of corrective remedial 

actions as compensation for proven breaches is 

pecuniary and not annulment of corrective orders 

and enforcement actions. Currently the appointment 

of the Corporation as a liquidator is still subject to 

confirmation by the courts.  

DPC hopes that its proposal to ensure that the 

appointment of DPC as liquidator by the RBZ is final 

and equivalent to a High Court appointment will be 

incorporated in banking legislation. The existing 

corporate insolvency laws do not facilitate the orderly 

exit of troubled banks. DPC will continue to lobby 

with the relevant authorities for the establishment of 

a separate insolvency regime for banks which should 

provide for expeditious, cost effective and equitable 

provisions to enable the maximum timely refund of 

deposits to insured and uninsured depositors. 

Co-operation with other safety net Players

A deposit insurance system should be able to deal 

with a limited number of simultaneous bank failures 

but the resolution of a systemic banking crisis requires 

that all financial system safety net participants work 

together effectively. In terms of international best 

practice, a framework should be in place for close 

co-ordination and information sharing between 

the deposit insurer and other financial safety net 

participants.  

A multi-disciplinary Financial Stability Committee 

(FSC) comprising the DPC, RBZ, Insurance and 

Pensions Commission (IPEC) and Securities and 

Exchange Commission of Zimbabwe (SEC) was 

established in April 2012 with the main objectives of 

facilitating early identification of sources of risk and 

potential vulnerabilities that could threaten financial 

stability, evaluate the ability of the financial system 

to absorb shocks should risks identified materialize 

and recommend appropriate policy responses for 

identified risks.  

Since the inception of the FSC, DPC has actively 

participated in the FSC’s deliberations and will 

continue to co-operate with all safety net participants 

in line with its mandate of promoting financial 

system stability. Co-operation and information sharing 

arrangements among safety net players is mutually 

beneficial to all parties and helps in reducing 

supervisory gaps, regulatory arbitrage and enhance 

consolidated supervision. 

The Banking Act [Chapter 24:20] is being reviewed 

to formalize information sharing and co-ordination 

arrangements among the key safety-net players 

which include DPC, RBZ, IPEC and SEC. 
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CommerCIal BanKs 

1) Afrasia Bank Zimbabwe Limited

2) Agribank 

3) Allied Bank 

4) Barclays Bank of Zimbabwe Ltd 

5) Banc ABC  

6) CBZ Bank  

7) Ecobank  

8) FBC Bank  

9) Interfin (Under Curatorship) 

10)  MBCA Bank Ltd  

11) MetBank 

12) NMB Bank Ltd 

13) Royal Bank (In liquidation) 

14) Stanbic Bank Zimbabwe Ltd 

15) Standard Chartered Bank Zimbabwe Ltd 

16) Steward Bank 

17) Trust Bank Corporation Limited (In Liquidation) 

18) ZB Bank 

merChant BanKs 
1) Capital Bank (Closed) 

2) Tetrad Investment Bank 

BuIldIng soCIetIes 
1) CABS Building Society 

2) CBZ Building Society 

3) FBC Building Society 

4) ZB Building Society  

anneXure: 1 ContrIButory InstItutIons
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In line with its mandate as constituted in the Deposit 

Protection Corporation Act [Chapter 24:29], it is the 

Corporation’s responsibility to administer the Deposit 

Protection Fund and to compensate depositors in full 

or in part, for losses incurred in the event of insolvency 

of a contributory institution. The following Questions 

& Answers have been designed to assist depositors 

and the general public in raising awareness of deposit 

insurance and the claim procedure:-  

1. When does pay out commence after a bank 
has been closed? 

•	 The Deposit Protection Corporation Act [Chapter 

24:29] stipulates that pay-out should commence 

within three months from date of closure of a 

contributory institution.  

•	 At law, the appointment of DPC as a liquidator 

by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe requires 

confirmation by the Courts, initially as a 

Provisional Liquidator, prior to appointment as 

a Final Liquidator. In short, a Liquidator needs 

to obtain a Certificate from the Master of the 

High Court before he or she can practice. Once 

a certificate of appointment has been secured, 

there is need for DPC and the Reserve Bank 

of Zimbabwe to conduct a handover/takeover 

exercise. A Provisional Liquidator can secure and 

value assets but has no authority to dispose them. 

DPC only takes charge of a failed institution’s 

affairs after the procedural requirements have 

been fulfilled.  

   

2. What is the process to be followed in order 
to make a claim?

To be eligible for a refund, depositors will need to 

submit for processing a duly completed and signed 

Claim Form to the Deposit Protection Corporation. 

The form can be accessed through any of the 

following channels: 

•	 Downloading from our corporate website         

www.dpcorp.co.zw 

•	 Send an email request to claims@dpcorp.co.zw 

•	 Visit our offices at Number 26 Fife Avenue, Cnr 

Blakiston Street, Harare. 

3. are there any other requirements in addition 
to the Claim form? 

•	 Positive identification (e.g. copy of the national 

identity card).  

•	 Certificate of Registration/ Incorporation and 

CR14 (for corporates) and each owner or partner 

of the firm to provide positive identification.  

•	 In cases where a third party completes a claim 

form on behalf of another depositor, a Power of 

Attorney or affidavit is required designating the 

person as authorised to sign documents on 

behalf of the account holder or claimant. 

•	 The claim form should be certified or notarised 

by a Commissioner of Oaths. Claims on account 

of deceased depositors require a letter of 

administration or an order from a court of law 

confirming the executor of the estate. 

•	 In case of joint account, where one party is 

deceased, a letter of administration is required 

before payment is made or death certificate of 

the deceased depositor. 

•	 Where the account holder is a minor, the 

parent or guardian should submit a copy of the 

minor’s birth certificate, affidavit or any such 

documentation by guardian confirming the minor/

parent relationship. 

•	 All alterations or erasures on the claim form must 

be counter-signed by the account holder.

4. must a claim be submitted in person?  

•	 Yes. However, those who are unable to appear 

in person may submit claims by post or email 

to claims@dpcorp.co.zw. All forms must be 

signed in the presence of and witnessed by a 

Commissioner of Oaths, a Magistrate, Notary 

public or persons authorised to authenticate 

public documents.  

anneXure 2: dePosIt reImBursement ProCess 
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5. Who should file a claim if more than one 
person is authorised to draw on an account?  

•	 Payment by the Fund is made to those people 

authorised to make withdrawals from their 

account. For example, either party could 

claim compensation on an account if any 

one of the parties was authorised to sign for 

withdrawals. If two signatures were required to 

make withdrawals, both signatures would be 

necessary to claim deposit protection. If there 

is difficulty in obtaining a second signatory, then 

the only signatory available will be required to 

give an indemnity to the Fund by completing 

and signing an affidavit and have it certified by 

a Commissioner of Oaths, a Magistrate, Notary 

public or persons authorised to authenticate 

public documents. 

 

6. What types of deposits qualify for a claim? 

•	 All types of deposits received by a bank in its 

usual cause of business are protected, including 

savings deposits, current accounts and time 

deposits.  

7. do I have to pay any fee for my claim to be 
processed? 

•	 No. There is no fee that is charged for processing 

claims. 

8. how long does it take to process my claim? 

•	 Upon receipt of all the requisite verification 

information, the processing of claims is usually 

finalised between 48 hours to one week.  

9. how are the payments made? 

•	 The Fund usually makes payments to depositors 

through a bank transfers or mobile payment 

systems. 

10. What if I do not have another bank  
account? 

•	 One can nominate an account in someone’s 

name where the deposit can be transferred to. 

The Claim Form will however need to be signed 

and certified by any person allocated with the 

duties of a commissioner of oaths. 

11. Is there a limit to the amount one can claim?  

•	 Yes. Currently the maximum insurable limit one 

can receive as compensation is $500.00 per 

depositor (Five Hundred United States Dollars). 

 

12. so, what will happen to my balance if my 
deposit is above $500? 

•	 Any balance above the maximum insurable limit 

of $500.00 will be settled through the liquidation 

process. The public will be updated in due 

course of the liquidation process and date of the 

first meeting of creditors. 

13. What is liquidation?

•	 It refers to the process where assets of the 

closed bank will be disposed of through a public 

auction. Proceeds from the sale of assets will 

then be distributed to the creditors of the bank in 

a way as determined by the Liquidator. 

14. how quickly will the liquidator make 
payments of the amounts above the insurable 
limit of $500.00? 

•	 Payments will depend on the rate of recovery 

from the liquidation of the bank’s assets and the 

extent and priority of claims from other creditors 

of the bank as determined by the Liquidator. 

Final disbursements may take several months or 

even years. 

 

15. how do I contact deposit Protection 
Corporation if I need more information or 
clarification? 

•	 For more information, please contact Public 

Relations Department through any of the following 

channels: 

 – Telephone: (263) (04) 250900/1 or (263) (04) 

252336/460 

 – Email: info@dpcorp.co.zw 

 – Website: www.dpcorp.co.zw 
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Corporate governance

The Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 

24:29) was promulgated on 16 March 2012. This 

ushered a new dispensation, with the Corporation`s 

mandate being expanded to include inter alia; to 

contribute to the stability of the financial system, 

the monitoring of the business and activities of 

contributory institutions to ensure minimal exposure of 

the Deposit Protection Fund and to assist the Ministry 

of Finance in the formulation and implementation of 

fiscal and monetary policy so as to ensure sound 

banking practices and fair competition among banks 

in Zimbabwe.

Following the promulgation of the Deposit Protection 

Corporation Act Chapter 24:29, a new Board 

of Directors was appointed in May 2013. The 

Board of Directors now comprise of the following: 

one representative from the Reserve Bank, one 

legal and CorPorate affaIrs

representative from the Ministry of Finance and 

Economic Development, the Chief Executive Officer 

and four independent directors appointed by the 

Minister of Finance and Economic Development. 

The four directors would be appointed from a list 

of nominees submitted by the Bankers Association 

of Zimbabwe and Building Societies Association of 

Zimbabwe. 

the Board of directors comprise of the following;

Dr Stanley Mahlahla Acting Chairman

Dr Charity Dhliwayo Board Member

Mr Charles Nyakabau Board Member

Mrs Mary Takavarasha Board Member

Mr John Chikura Board Member (CEO)
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The Corporation awaits the appointment of a 

substantive chairman and one Board member.

The Board of Directors confirms that the Corporation 

remains committed to sound corporate governance 

principles. Sound governance and a strong 

governance framework designed to meet depositors 

and stakeholder expectations, coupled with the 

highest standards of professional and business 

ethics as espoused in the DPC charter, is the 

Corporation`s hallmark.

name of director meetings held meetings attended

Dr C Dhliwayo 3 3

Dr S Mahlahla 3 3

Mrs M Takavarasha 3 2

Mr C Nyakabau 3 3

Mr J Chikura 3 3

During the calendar year, the Board met three (3) 

times.

regulatory environment

The Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC), as a 

creature of statute, ensures maximum compliance 

with all the relevant legislative instruments. The 

legislative framework consists, inter alia, of the 

following: Deposit Protection Act (Chapter 24:29), 

Deposit Protection Corporation Regulations, 

Statutory Instrument 156 of 2013; Banking Act 

(Chapter 24:20); Public Finance Management Act 

(Chapter 22:19); Companies Act (Chapter 24:03); 

Insolvency Act (Chapter 6:04); Labour Act (Chapter 

28:01).

The Deposit Protection Corporation Regulations, 

Statutory Instrument 156 of 2013, gazetted in 2013, 

operationalised and enhanced the administration of 

the Deposit Protection Act Chapter 24:29. The DPC 

Regulations have enhanced operational efficiency in 

terms of prompt reimbursement of depositors, data 

collection, surveillance of banks and publicity of the 

scheme. 

The Micro-finance Act was promulgated in 2013 to 

provide for the registration, supervision and regulation 

of persons conducting micro-finance business in 

Zimbabwe. The Act mandates the Deposit Protection 

Corporation to become the curator or liquidator of 

the micro-finance institutions. Section 35 of the 

Micro-finance Act states; 

Every micro-finance institution shall be required 

to be a contributor for the purpose of the Deposit 

Protection Act (Chapter 24:29) and accordingly 

that Act`s provisions for curatorship, insolvency and 

winding up of contributors shall apply.

In as much as this was a welcome development, 

the provision is deficient in that it did not specifically 

provide for deposit taking institutions. The paramount 

objective of DPC is to protect depositors. Micro-

finance institutions do not take deposits. There is 

need for the registration and licensing of micro-

finance deposit-taking institutions for the provision to 

be applicable. The relevant authorities were advised 

of the omissions and amendments are being drafted 

to rectify the anomaly. What this entails is that, going 

forward, deposit-taking micro-finance institutions will 

become contributory members of the DPC scheme. 

The DPC Act will consequently be applicable to them.

Following the experiences of being the provisional 

liquidator, it was apparent that there were legal 

deficiencies which hindered the efficiency and 

effectiveness of DPC as the liquidator. There were 

inordinate delays in the court processes to the 

detriment of the depositors, creditors, employees 

and shareholders. The use of the Companies Act 

as a resolution tool for banking institutions is not 

only archaic but fraught with many challenges. 

Consequently, proposals were forwarded to the 

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development 

to amend the Banking Act by having a separate 

resolution legislative framework for banks as that is 

international best practice. The Ministry also issued 

the Draft Banking Amendment Bill to stakeholders for 

comments and DPC submitted its comments. The 

Bill will follow due process before it is passed into law.
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The Internal Audit Department continued to play its 

significant role in verifying and validating whether 

Management has met its responsibility for the 

adequate design and effective operation of the 

system of internal control. This was carried out by 

evaluating controls, risk management, business and 

governance processes as well as monitoring whether 

Management has implemented the agreed action 

plans in line with recommendations for improvements 

in controls, risk management, business and 

governance processes. Internal Audit continued 

their co-operation with external auditors to ensure 

efficiency and effectiveness. External auditors had 

access to all internal audit reports.

Internal audIt

The Board Audit Committee considered on a quarterly 

basis:

a) The Internal Audit reports;

b) Deposit Protection Board’s financial reports;

c) The utilization of resources as compared to the 

Budgets;

d) The implementation of the Risk Management 

framework;

e) The update and progress of Management’s 

overall performance against initiatives set out 

in the Corporate Plan as well as Management’s 

assessments of internal and external factors that 

may impact the performance of the Corporate Plan.
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The effectiveness of the Deposit Protection 

Corporation’s compliance with Internal Controls 

as at 31st December 2013 was assessed by 

Management and validated by Internal Audit. Based 

on the assessment and the effectiveness of the 

Deposit Protection Corporation’s systems, policies, 

practices and processes established in 2013, it can 

be reported that a sound system of internal control 

within the Corporation was established. The DPC 

Board is committed to ensure that Management 

continuously takes pro-active measures to:

a) Create a conducive corporate culture and 

environment that emphasizes accountability for 

control and risk management.

b) Identify, assess and address the various 

risks that could hinder the achievement of the 

Corporation’s objectives.

c) Review and monitor the entire system of 

internal control and address issues or problems 

adequately on a timely basis.

There were no reported incidences or weaknesses 

or deficiencies in the adequacy and integrity of 

internal controls embedded in the Deposit Protection 

Corporation’s systems, policies, practices and 

processes and there were no financial losses 

incurred for the year ended 31st December 2013 

resulting from weaknesses or deficiencies in the 

internal controls.
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“In order to protect depositors and contribute to 

financial stability, it is essential that the public be 

informed on an ongoing basis about the benefits and 

limitations of the deposit insurance system.

 – (Core Principle #10 – International Association of 

Deposit Insurers, IADI)

1. Introduction

The primary role of the Public Relations Department is 

to develop and effectively communicate messages to 

the public at large and the targeted market segments 

through ongoing public awareness and education 

initiatives to enhance public understanding and 

confidence in the Deposit Protection Scheme and 

the role of Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) in 

contributing to the stability of the financial system 

in Zimbabwe [DPC Act Chapter 24:29, Section 5 

(1) (f)]. Educating and raising public awareness is a 

continuous process over the long term. This requires 

the adoption of a systematic and comprehensive 

approach, which DPC undertakes through its rolling 

three year Integrated Communications Plan.

2. Integrated Communications Plan

An integrated marketing communication approach 

will be utilised where a variety of communication 

tools or channels will be used together thus 

PuBlIC relatIons

providing a seamless customer experience at 

the same time reaching a wider audience whilst 

ensuring consistency of the message across all 

touch points. The benefit of an integrated approach 

is that it takes into consideration differences in 

literacy levels, geographical locations, population 

sizes, demographic characteristics (e.g. age) and 

budgetary considerations. Each communication 

tool has its advantages and limitations, and an 

integrated approach will assist as the tools will be 

complementary at the same time help maximise 

coverage to reach people of different backgrounds 

and levels of society.

The communication plan will be premised on the 

following 4 key pillars:

a) digital marketing – corporate website, online 

marketing, social media marketing, email & SMS 

marketing.

b) traditional advertising – traditional above and 

below the line media communication.

c) events marketing

d) Corporate social responsibility

3. objectives of the Integrated Communications 
Plan

The Plan launched to cover a three year period, seeks 

to exploit the benefits of digital marketing, traditional 
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advertising, social media marketing and events 

marketing in order to meet the following objectives:

a) Increase and sustain the level of public awareness 

of deposit protection scheme (existence, 

benefits and limitations) so as to enhance public 

recognition, financial literacy and confidence in 

the Scheme; and contribute to the stability of the 

country’s financial system.

b) Increase and sustain public awareness and 

visibility of Deposit Protection Corporation’s brand 

or image so as to inspire a sense of confidence 

and trust in the organisation; and contribute to 

the stability of country’s financial system.

c) Increase the Corporation’s collaboration and 

engagement with key stakeholders.

d) Reinforce consumer protection.

4. target audiences

The Corporation will take a proactive approach when 

reaching out to the target audiences by structuring 

and targeting messages effectively and choosing the 

correct channels and tools with which to deliver them. 

The Corporation has identified the principal target 

audience groups and sub-groups. Understanding 

depositor profiles and their different risk tolerances, 

including attitudes, perceptions, sentiments, specific 

issues and barriers related to each group, is important 

in structuring the key messages and selecting the 

relevant tools of communication. 

In order to achieve the stated objectives, the 

integrated communications plan will primarily target 

the following audiences for its major promotional 

activities:

•	 Bank depositors and general non-banking public.

•	 Member institutions (banks) and representative 

bodies.

•	 Legislators and regulatory authorities. 

•	 Media (public and private).

•	 Internal staff and and Board of Directors.

5. Key messages to be Promoted

The following key messages will be structured based 

on the target audience profile and will be promoted 

through various communication channels to the 

targeted audiences in order to achieve the stated 

communication objectives:

•	 Benefits and limitations of deposit protection.

•	 Limits and scope of coverage.

•	 Corporate profile (who we are and what we do).

•	 Reimbursement process and claim procedures.

•	 Basic contact information of DPC.

•	 List of registered member institutions and how 

they can be identified.

•	 Board’s role in contributing to the stability of the 

financial system in Zimbabwe.

6. Communication tools/Channels

The communication strategy will incorporate the 

selection of communication tools that provide for a 

wide but targeted reach in the most cost-effective 

manner. To achieve these goals, the Corporation will 

factor the best timing and places to reach its target 

audience. Special consideration will also be given to 

the implementation and co-ordination efforts of the 

Corporation with participating member institutions 

and financial safety net players. 

Member banks will play a pivotal role in disseminating 

information to the banking public through display of 

cover certificates in all banking halls, membership 

signs on ATM areas and door entrances, ATM 

screen-savers, display of brochures and posters 

in all branches and mention of DPC in all their 

advertisements and websites as part of some of 

the publicity requirements of the Deposit Protection 

Scheme as required by law (DPC Act Chapter 24:29, 

Section 61; and Statutory Instrument 156 of 2013, 

Part IX).

The Corporation will leverage on the following;

a) digital marketing – corporate website, social 

media, online marketing, email marketing and 

SMS marketing.

b) traditional advertising – print, radio, television 

and billboards.

c) events marketing  Participating at provincial 

and national exhibitions such as Zimbabwe 

International Trade Fair (ZITF), Harare Agricultural 
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Show, SMEs International Expo, Consumer 

Council of Zimbabwe Expos, Provincial Shows 

– Marondera, Kadoma, Gweru, Mutare, Bindura 

and Masvingo.

 – Campus Tours - presentations to University 

students.

 – Seminars and workshops for banks and media 

practitioners.

d) Corporate social responsibility - Staff 

volunteering initiatives through participating in 

joint corporate social responsibility initiatives on 

environmental awareness such as the Friends 

of the Environment Annual Walkathon and tree 

planting initiatives by Environment Africa.

7.  Conclusion

In order to ensure successful implementation of 

the integrated communication plan, a nationwide 

consumer survey will be conducted by an 

independent research agency to assess the level 

of public awareness of the deposit protection 

scheme and DPC. The survey will also seek to elicit 

appropriate communication tools for each target 

group for effective deployment of resources.
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1. manpower management

The Deposit Protection Corporation manning level 

(headcount) was 26, against a budget of 29 positions. 

The headcount increased by 10 from 2012 as a result 

of bolstering the Business Operations Department 

and Public Relations Department. An appropriate 

structure to meet the expanded mandate was 

approved with emphasis on Business Operations. 

The DPC established a more comprehensive 

manpower contingency plan and seeks to increase 

Deposit Protection Corporation

Evelyn House, 26 Fife Avenue

Cnr Blackiston Street, Harare

www.dpcorp.co.zw

info@dpcorp.co.zw

Tel: 250900/1, 252336, 252460

 

 

human resourCes

fInanCe and admInIstratIon

the capacity of payout infrastructure and external 

resources to respond faster and more effectively 

to any situation. The Corporation recorded zero 

turnover for 2013. Furthermore the DPC engaged 

contract bank examiners for specific examinations 

whose contracts ended in November 2013.

The Corporation’s organisational structure, policies 

and procedures were updated to ensure compliance 

with statutory regulations, international best practices 

and standards in depositor protection. The industrial 
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relations climate remains conducive, calm and 

positive during the period under review, despite the 

difficult economic environment. This was achieved 

through judicious implementation of policies and 

procedures, mutually consultative processes, 

coupled with a clear code of ethics and conflict 

of interest guidelines, which helped to align the 

individual actions and behaviours. 

The Corporation’s Strategic Plan was reviewed and 

realigned with internal and external realities in order 

to aid the Corporation to deliver on its statutory 

legislative mandate. Plan execution is measured 

through the Balanced Scorecard which was adopted 

as an appropriate performance measurement tool. 

2. manpower development

The Corporation is a knowledge organisation and 

strives for continuous development and upskilling. 

The DPC has programs for staff manpower and 

professional development, structured under the 

following four broad categories:-

1. local training 2. overseas (regional & 
international) training

3. in-house training 4. Continuous professional 
development

Regionally and internationally, the Corporation 

continued to benefit from established networks and 

synergies through IADI training platforms and block 

release platforms offered by the FDIC University (USA). 

Specific and tailor-made training was embarked on to 

acquire specific skills in order to address identified 

skill gaps. Local undergraduate and post graduate 

studies were also facilitated for employees.
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The ICT Department accomplished its goals for 2013 

with the most important accomplishment being the 

provision of reliable ICT service to staff. The ICT 

environment has been characterized by countrywide 

upgrades in network infrastructure by several service 

providers. This has offered promising opportunities 

in communication services at suppressed costs. In 

addition, the costs of data storage has also been 

decreasing worldwide providing opportunities for 

data archiving and longer data retention policies. 

With modern business models being generally ICT 

driven, the Corporation took the initiative to upgrade 

its network bandwidth to improve business efficiency 

and meet user demands. There are also plans to 

install an alternative internet link for use in the event of 

network downtime mainly as a result of maintenance 

work or upgrades by service providers. The world’s 

increasing trend in the use of mobile devices for 

working purposes has promoted the extension of the 

wired network to accommodate wireless networks 

and webmail for use in teleworking. There is still room 

for improvement in the area of networking services 

as technology keeps improving.

The organization relegated its tiring Microsoft 

Office Software for newer editions. The retiring XP 

operating systems were also upgraded to newer 

and compatible operating systems. Server platforms 

running on 32-bit architecture were also upgraded 

to 64-bit systems to ensure guaranteed compatibility 

with newer applications. As such, the Corporation 

upgraded its domain to Windows 2012 domain for 

Windows users. The Navision Accounting System 

will be upgraded during the forthcoming year due 

to incompatibility of current edition with the newer 

hardware and software platforms. All new software 

and platforms were fully licenced for the avoidance 

of future licence breaches.

The Corporation took the initiative to develop some 

of its systems in-house which include the Pay-out, 

Liquidation and Risk Analysis Systems. The Pay-

out System is already functional and being used for 

InformatIon and CommunICatIon 
teChnology 
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pay out of depositors in Royal Bank, Trust Bank and 

Genesis which were closed by the Reserve Bank of 

Zimbabwe. The Pay-out System will be patched to 

meet any changes in the operating environment at 

minimal cost. The Pay-out System is used in the bank 

resolution process by tracking depositors’ balances 

and claims against insured deposits. It improves 

the turnaround time in claims processing and also 

reduces risk of data inconsistencies by centralising 

data of failed banks. The in-house development of 

Risk Analysis System (RAS) is still underway and 

expected to be complete by end of 2014. The RAS is 

expected to automate the returns validation process 

and risk analysis which is currently being done semi-

manually using spreadsheets. 

The Corporation’s off-site disaster recovery site was 

successfully tested during the year to affirm the 

organisation preparedness to continue operations 

in the event of a disaster. The site which has been 

operational for over three years and is connected to 

the production centre via a fibre link and backups 

are done online. Further, the annual computer 

maintenance and servicing was successfully 

completed with no issues affecting the business 

operations highlighted. This exercise is carried out to 

ascertain the level of exposure to ICT risks. 
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dePosIt ProteCtIon CorPoratIon

fInanCIal statements

The Directors of the Corporation are responsible for 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records and 

preparation of the financial statements and related 

information. The Corporation’s independent external 

auditors, Deloitte & Touché, have audited the financial 

statements and their report appears on page 44. The 

external auditors are responsible for independently 

auditing and reporting on these financial statements 

in conformity with International Standards on Auditing.

The Directors are required by the Deposit Protection 

Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29) to maintain 

adequate accounting records and to prepare 

financial statements for each financial year which 

present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 

the Corporation at the end of the financial period and 

of the performance and cash flows for the period.

The financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards. 

The Directors are responsible for the Corporation’s 

systems of internal control. These are designed to 

provide reasonable but not absolute assurance as 

to the reliability of the financial statements, and to 

safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, 

and to prevent and detect material misstatements and 

losses. The systems are implemented and monitored 

by suitably trained personnel with an appropriate 

segregation of authority and duties. Nothing has 

come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that 

any material breakdown in the functioning of these 

controls, procedures and systems has occurred 

during the year under review.

The annual financial statements are prepared on the 

going concern basis; this has been assessed as 

appropriate. The Directors however believe that under 

the current economic environment, a continuous 

assessment of the ability of the Corporation to 

continue as a going concern will be performed. 

 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 45 

to 72 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 

March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by :-

S Mahlahla

Acting Chairman

V Vuma

Legal Counsel/

Corporate Secretary

C Dhliwayo

Director

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

direCtOrs’ respOnsiBiLitY fOr finanCiaL repOrting
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The Directors submit their report for the year ended 
31 December 2013 and the audited financial 
statements for the same period.

nature of business

The Deposit Protection Corporation is governed by 
the Deposit Protection Act (Chapter 24:29). The 
Deposit Protection Corporation aims at meeting a 
number of objectives that include:

•	 Protecting small, less-financially sophisticated 
depositors by providing an orderly means of 
compensation in the event of a deposit-taking 
institution becoming insolvent;

•	 Enhancing public confidence and systemic 
stability by providing a framework for the 
resolution of failed banks;

•	 Enhancing competition in the financial sector by 
mitigating some of the competitive barriers in the 
deposit taking industry; and,

•	 Helping in defining the boundaries of the 
Government exposure and support in protecting 
depositors when a bank or the Corporation of 
banks fails in normal times.

directorate
There have been no changes in the composition of 
the Corporation’s Board. 

auditors
The auditors, Messrs. Deloitte & Touché, have 
indicated their willingness to continue in office. 
However, re-appointment and fixing of their 
remuneration for the past year will be at the discretion 
of the office of the Comptroller Auditor General on 
whose behalf the audit is performed. 

By order of the Board
V. Vuma

Legal Counsel/

Corporate Secretary

Harare, Zimbabwe

6 March 2015

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

dePosIt ProteCtIon CorPoratIon

fInanCIal statements
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rePort of the IndePendent audItors

to the memBers of dePosIt ProteCtIon 

CorPoratIon

We have audited the accompanying financial 
statements of the Deposit Protection Corporation 
on pages 45 to 72, which comprise the statement 
of financial position, statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income at 31 December 2013, 
the statement of changes in accumulated funds 
and the statement of cash flows for the year ended 
31 December 2013, and the notes to the financial 
statements which include a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

directors’ responsibility for the financial 

statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by the 
Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29). 
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing 
and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances.

auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects the financial position of the 
Deposit Protection Corporation as at 31 December 
2013, and of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and in 
disclosure requirements of the Deposit Protection 
Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29).

DELOITTE & TOUCHE
Harare, Zimbabwe
6 March 2015
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dePosIt ProteCtIon CorPoratIon 

statement of ProfIt or loss and other 

ComPrehensIVe InCome
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

	
notes 2013

us$
2012
us$

revenue
Premium income 10 866 348 2 463 683

Investment income 7 166 051 57 627

Profit on disposal of property, 
vehicles and equipment

152 -

Other income 8 2 050 238 31 113

Total income 13 082 789 2 552 423

expenses
Operating expenses 9 (2 593 937) (1 979 195)

Protection payments (328 516) (499 827)

Loss on disposal of property, 
vehicles and equipment

- (6 729)

Finance costs (52 704) (40 494)

Surplus for the year 10 107 632 26 178

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 10 107 632 26 178
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

dePosIt ProteCtIon CorPoratIon

statement of fInanCIal PosItIon

notes 2013
us$

2012
us$

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, vehicles and 
equipment

12 1 023 812 987 013

CURRENT ASSETS

Other financial assets 13 3 411 334 828 763
Trade and other receivables 14 8 408 146 1 095 866
Cash and cash equivalents 15 352 947 83 942

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 12 172 427 2 008 571

Total assets 13 196 239 2 995 584

                                          
RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

Reserves

Accumulated fund 11 995 515 1 887 883
Non-distributable reserve 138 196 138 196

TOTAL EQUITY 12 133 711 2 026 079

Non-current liabilities

Long term borrowings 16 242 937 306 204

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 17 224 656 107 107
Provision for protection payments 18 531 668 492 927
Current portion of long term 
borrowings

16 63 267 63 267

Total current liabilities 819 591 663 301

Total reserves and liabilities 13 196 239 2 995 584
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dePosIt ProteCtIon CorPoratIon statement 

of Changes In aCCumulated funds
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

accumulated
fund

us$

non-
distributable

reserve
us$

total
us$

Balance at 31 December 2011 1 861 705 138 196 1 999 901

Total comprehensive income for the year 26 178 - 26 178

Balance at 31 December 2012 1 887 883 138 196 2 026 079

Total comprehensive income for the year 10 107 632 - 10 107 632

Balance at 31 December 2013 11 995 515 138 196 12 133 711
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dePosIt ProteCtIon CorPoratIon

statement of CashfloWs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012

notes us$ us$

Cash flows from operating activities

Surplus for the year 10 107 632 26 178

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 12 60 328 56 523

(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, vehicles and equipment (152) 6 729

Finance costs recognized in profit or loss 52 704 40 494

Accrued interest income on investments (34 455) (10 788)

Protection payments provision 328 516 492 927

10 514 574 612 063

Movements in working capital:

Increase in trade and other receivables (7 312 280) (39 134)

Increase in trade and other payables 117 549 46 855

Cash generated from operations 3 319 842 619 784

Interest paid (52 704) (40 494)

Protection payments (289 775) -

Net cash generated by operating activities 2 977 363 579 290

Cash flows from investing activities

Property, vehicles and equipment additions: expansion 12 (97 252) (160 821)

Investment in financial assets (2 548 116) (817 975)

Proceeds from disposal of property, vehicles and equipment 277 -

Net cash used in investing activities 332 272 (399 506)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings - 369 471

Decrease in borrowings (63 267) -

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 269 005 (30 035)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 83 492 113 977

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 352 947 83 492
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dePosIt ProteCtIon CorPoratIon

notes to the fInanCIal statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1. general information  

The Deposit Protection Corporation (the ‘Corporation’) 
was established by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe on 
behalf of the Government of Zimbabwe to lessen the 
impact on the public when banks, building societies 
and other financial institutions become insolvent 
or collapse. The Corporation is incorporated and 
domiciled in Zimbabwe.The financial statements are 
expressed in the United States of America dollars 
(“US$”).

2. statement of compliance 

The Corporation’s financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, (IFRS) and the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, 
(IFRIC) interpretations. The financial statements are 
based on statutory records that are maintained under 
the historical cost convention as modified by the 
revaluation of property and equipment and financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values, as 
explained in accounting policies below. 

3. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared on the historical 
cost basis except for certain financial instruments 
and liabilities that are stated at fair value. Significant 
details of the Corporation’s accounting policies are 
set out below and are consistent with those applied in 
the previous year, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements are in compliance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
the disclosure requirements of the Deposit Protection 
Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29).

4. Critical accounting estimates and 

judgements

In preparing the annual financial statements in terms 
of IFRS, management is required to make certain 
estimates and assumptions that may materially affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the 

date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the 
reported period and the related disclosures. The 
actual results often vary from these estimates due to 
the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates 
and assumptions concerning future events. These 
estimates and judgments are based on historical 
experience, current and expected future economic 
conditions and other factors, including expectations 
of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances.

As the estimates are reviewed on a regular basis, 
any changes to these accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimate is 
revised, if it impacts on only the current period. If the 
revision of the estimate impacts on both the current 
and future periods, then the change in estimate is 
recognized in the current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgments
The following accounting policies have been identified 
as being particularly complex or involving subjective 
judgments or assessments:

useful lives of property, vehicles and equipment
The Corporation’s management determines the 
estimated useful lives and related depreciation 
charges for its property, vehicles and equipment. 
This estimate is based on projected product life 
cycle of these assets. It could change significantly as 
a result of technological innovations in response to 
severe industry cycles. Management will increase the 
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than 
previously estimated lives, or will write off or write 
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets 
that have been abandoned or sold. Estimated useful 
lives are noted in note 6.1. 
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5. new accounting policies adopted

5.1  accounting standards and interpretations adopted impacting the annual financial statements

The Corporation did not adopt any new or revised accounting standards or interpretations in the current year 
that would have had an impact on the amounts or disclosures reported in these financial statements. 

5.2  new and revised Ifrss mandatorily effective at the end of the reporting period with no material   

 effect on the reported amounts and disclosures in the current period or prior period.

The following new or revised IFRSs were mandatorily effective and adopted by the Corporation as at the 
end of the reporting period, but did not have a material effect on the current or previously reported financial 
performance or financial position.

The Corporation is in the process of assessing the impact of IFRS 9 and the amended IAS 19. The Corporation 
has assessed the remaining amendments and new standards and does not believe that the adoption of these 
will have a material impact on the financial results or disclosures of the Corporation.

•	 amendments to ifrs 7 disclosures – 
transfers of financial assets

The amendments increase the disclosure requirements 
for transactions involving the transfer of financial assets 
in order to provide greater transparency around risk 
exposures when financial assets are transferred.

•	 amendments to ias 1 presentation of 
items of Other Comprehensive income

The amendments introduce new terminology for the 
statement of comprehensive income and income 
statement. Under the amendments to IAS 1, the 
‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed the 
‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income and the ‘income statement’ is renamed the 
‘statement of profit or loss’

•	 amendments to ias 1 presentation of 
financial statements (as part of the 
annual improvements of ifrss 2009 – 
2011 Cycle issued in may 2012)

IAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies 
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement 
or reclassification to present a statement of financial 
position as at the beginning of the preceding period 
(third statement of financial position). The amendments 
to IAS 1 clarify that an entity is required to present a 
third statement of financial position only when the 
retrospective application, restatement or classification 
has a material effect on the information in the third 
statement of financial position and that related notes 
are not required to a Corporation the third statement of 
financial position.

•	 amendments to ias 12 deferred tax: 
recovery of underlying assets

Under the amendments, investment properties that are 
measured using the fair value model in accordance 
with IAS 40 Investment Property are presumed to be 
recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of 
measuring deferred taxes unless the presumption is 
rebutted.



DPC AnnuAl RepoRt 2013
46

•	 ifrs 11 – Joint arrangements IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. 
IFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which 
two or more parties have joint control should be 
classified. SIC- 13 Jointly Controlled Entities – Non 
monetary Contributions by Ventures will be withdrawn 
upon the effective date of IFRS 11. Under IFRS 11, 
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or 
joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations 
of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under 
IAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements: 
jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and 
jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures 
under IFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using 
the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly 
controlled entities under IAS 31 can be accounted for 
using the equity method of accounting or proportional 
consolidation. 
Issued May 2011, Effective date: Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

•	 ifrs 12 – disclosures of interests in Other 
entities

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable 
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint 
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated 
structured entities. In general, the disclosure 
requirements in IFRS 12 are more extensive than those 
in the current standards.
Issued May 2011, Effective date: Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013

5.3 Impact of standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective. at the reporting date, the 
following new and/or revised accounting standards and interpretations were in issue but not yet 
effective:
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•	 ifrs 13- fair Value measurement IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for 
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair 
value measurements. The Standard defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and 
requires disclosures about fair value measurements. 
The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both 
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument 
items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair 
value measurements and disclosures about fair value 
measurements, except in specified circumstances. 
In general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 
are more extensive than those required in the current 
standards. 

Issued May 2011, Effective date: Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

•	 amendments to ifrs 7 – disclosures – 
Offsetting financial assets and financial 
Liabilities

The amendments to IFRS 7 require entities to 
disclose information about rights of offset and related 
arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) 
for financial instruments under an enforceable master 
netting agreement or similar arrangement.

Issued October 2010, Effective date: Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

•	 amendments to ias 32 - Offsetting financial 
assets and financial Liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the existing 
application issues relating to the offset of financial 
assets and financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, 
the amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has 
a legal enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘simultaneous 
realisation and settlement’.

Issued October 2010, Effective date: Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014

5.3 Impact of standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective. at the reporting date, the 
following new and/or revised accounting standards and interpretations were in issue but not yet 
effective:
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•	 amendments to ias 32 – Offsetting financial 
assets and financial Liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the existing 
application issues relating to the offset of financial 
assets and financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, 
the amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has 
a legal enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘simultaneous 
realisation and settlement’ 

Issued October 2010, Effective date: Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014

•	 amendments to ias 19 – employee Benefits The amendments to IAS 19 change the accounting 
for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The 
most significant change relates to the accounting for 
changes in defined benefit obligations and in fair value 
of plan assets when they occur, and hence eliminate 
the ‘corridor approach’ permitted under the previous 
version of IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past 
service costs. The amendments require all actuarial 
gains and losses to be recognised immediately through 
other comprehensive income in order for the net pension 
asset pension or liability recognised in the consolidated 
statement of financial position to reflect the full value 
of the plan deficit or surplus. Furthermore, the interest 
cost and expected return on plan assets used in the 
previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a ‘net-
interest’ amount, which is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
 
Issued June 2011, Effective date: Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013

•	 amendments to ias 16 – property plant and 
equipment

The amendments to IAS 16 clarify that spare parts, 
stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be 
classified as property, plant and equipment when they 
meet the definition of property, plant and equipment in 
IAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. 

•	 amendments to ias 32 – financial instru-
ments – presentation

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify that income tax relating 
to distributions to holders of any equity instrument and 
to transactions costs of an equity transaction should be 
accounted for in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes. 

Issued December 2011, Effective date: Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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6. significant accounting policies

Property, vehicles & equipment
Property, vehicles and equipment are stated at their 
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date 
of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent accumulated losses. 
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity 
such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially 
from those that would be determined using fair values 
at the end of each reporting period.   

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the Corporation and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance 
costs are charged to profit or loss during the financial 
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method 
to allocate the cost of each asset, to their residual 
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings    20 - 40 years
Furniture and fittings   10 years
Computers and office equipment 7 years
Vehicles    5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written 
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the 
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated 
recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals 
are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying 
amount. These are included in profit or loss.

6.1. Impairment

An impairment review of property, vehicles and 
equipment is carried out when there is an indication 
that these may be impaired by comparing the 
carrying amount thereof to its recoverable amount. 
The Corporation’s operations as a whole constitute 
the smallest cash-generating unit.

The recoverable amount thereof is the Corporation’s 
market capitalisation adjusted for the carrying amounts 
of financial assets that are tested for impairment 
separately. Where the recoverable amount is less 

than the carrying amount, the impairment charge is 
included in other net expenditure in order to reduce 
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment 
to its recoverable amount. The adjusted carrying 
amount is depreciated on a straight-line basis over 
the remaining useful life of property and equipment.

6.2. revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable for the sale of services in the 
ordinary course of the Corporation’s activities. 

The Corporation recognizes revenue when the amount 
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity 
and specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Corporation’s activities as described below. 

6.2.1 Premium income
Premium income is recognized in the accounting 
period in which it accrues. Premiums are received in 
arrears.

6.2.2 Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion 
basis using the effective interest method. When a 
receivable is impaired, the Corporation reduces the 
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the 
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original 
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues 
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest 
income on impaired loans is recognized using the 
original effective interest rate.

6.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at call with banks and other short term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less.

6.4 trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for 
goods or services that have been acquired in the 
ordinary course of business. Trade and other payables 
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due 
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within one year or less (or in the normal operating 
cycle of the business, if longer). If not, they are 
presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables 
are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method.

6.5 Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Corporation has 
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event for which it is probable that an outflow 
of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is 
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the 
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of 
the time value of money is material).

6.5.1 onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts 
are recognised and measured as provisions. An 
onerous contract is considered to exist where the 
Corporation has a contract under which unavoidable 
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract 
exceed the economic benefits expected to be 
received from the contract.

6.6 leases
A finance lease transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of an asset to the Corporation. 
Assets subject to finance leases are capitalised as 
property, plant and equipment at the fair value of the 
leased asset at inception of the lease, with the related 
lease obligation recognised at the same amount. 
Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives. Finance lease payments are 
allocated between finance costs and the capital 
repayments, using the effective interest method. 
Minimum lease payments on operating leases are 
charged against operating profit on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

6.7 taxation

The Corporation is domiciled in Zimbabwe. Under the 
current laws of Zimbabwe there is no income, estate, 
corporation, capital gains or other taxes payable 
by the Corporation. This is with exception of value 
added tax (“VAT”) and Corporation’s employees Pay 
As You Earn (“PAYE”) which are due and payable 
when applicable.

6.8 financial instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a 
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument in another entity. The Corporation’s 
financial instruments consist primarily of the following 
financial assets: non-current receivables, cash and 
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables; other 
current financial assets; and the following financial 
liabilities: borrowings, trade and other payables, and 
certain derivative instruments.

fair value

Where financial instruments are recognised at fair 
value, the instruments are measured at the amount 
for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability 
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction. Fair values have been 
determined as follows:

•	 Where market prices are available, these have 
been used.

•	 Where there are no market prices available, fair 
values have been determined using valuation 
techniques incorporating observable market 
inputs or discounting expected cash flows at 
market rates.

The fair value of the trade and other receivables, cash 
and cash equivalents, and trade and other payables 
approximates their carrying amount due to the short 
maturity period of these instruments.

effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of 
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or 
financial liability and of allocating interest income or 
expense over the period of the instrument.



DPC AnnuAl RepoRt 2013

51

  
Effectively, this method determines the rate that 
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments 
or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, if appropriate, a shorter period, to the 
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

financial assets

The Corporation classifies financial assets into the 
following categories:
  
•	 At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
•	 Loans and receivables.
•	 Held-to-maturity (HTM).
•	 Available-for-sale (AFS).

The classification of the financial assets is dependent 
on the purpose and characteristics of the particular 
financial assets and is determined at the date of 
initial recognition. Management reassesses the 
classification of financial assets on a biannual basis.

financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss (fVtPl)

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the 
asset is either held-for-trading or is a derivative that 
does not satisfy the criteria for hedge accounting or is 
designated at FVTPL. A financial asset is designated 
at FVTPL on initial recognition if this designation 
provides more useful information because:
•	 it eliminates or significantly reduces a 

measurement or recognition inconsistency (i.e. 
an accounting mismatch); or

•	 the financial asset is part of a group of financial 
assets, financial liabilities or both, that is managed 
and its performance evaluated on a fair value 
basis in accordance with a documented risk/
investment management strategy, and information 
regarding this grouping is reported internally to 
key management on this basis.

 
In addition, if a contract contains one or more 
embedded derivatives, the entire contract can be 
designated at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are recognized at fair value. 
Any subsequent gains or losses are recognized in 
profit or loss.

Financial assets which have been designated at 
FVTPL consist of trade receivables due in respect of 
sale of concentrate. The reason for this designation 
is that the receivables due from the third parties are 
based on concentrate sold to them which is only 
priced three months into the future. The pricing is 
therefore dependent on commodity and exchange 
rate movements in the interim period. Consequently, 
the receivables are initially reflected at fair value. This 
receivable is then remeasured on a monthly basis 
based on the movement in the forward curves of 
commodity prices and exchange rates. Any gains/
losses on these remeasurements are reflected in 
revenue.

Financial assets classified as held-for-trading 
comprise the foreign forward exchange contracts 
which are not designated as hedges in terms of 
IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement.

loans and receivables

Financial assets that are non-derivative with fixed 
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’.

Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method. Any subsequent 
impairment is included in the determination of other 
net income/expenditure.

Loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and 
cash equivalents with short-term maturities have 
been classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and 
receivables are considered as current if their maturity 
is within a year, otherwise they are reflected in non-
current assets.

held-to-maturity (htm)

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the 
Corporation has an intention and ability to hold to 
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity.

These financial assets are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. Any 
subsequent impairment, where the carrying amount 
falls below the recoverable amount, is included in 
the determination of other net income/expenditure. 
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The Corporation held no HTM instruments during the 
period or at year end.

available-for-sale (afs)

Other non-derivative financial assets are classified 
as AFS which are initially recognised at fair value. 
Any subsequent gains or losses are recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income, unless 
there is objective evidence and the fair value has 
declined below cost less accumulated impairments. 
On disposal or impairment of the financial asset, all 
cumulative unrecognised gains or losses, which were 
previously reflected in equity, are included in profit or 
loss for the period.

Impairment

Financial assets that are not held-for-trading or 
designated at FVTPL are assessed for objective 
evidence of impairment at the reporting date (e.g. 
evidence that the Corporation will not be able to 
collect all the amounts due according to the original 
terms of the receivable). If such evidence exists, the 
impairment for financial assets at amortised cost 
is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective 
interest rate.

The carrying amount of these financial assets, with 
the exception of trade receivables, is reduced by the 
impairment. Trade receivables are reduced through an 
allowance account, with movements in the allowance 
account included in the determination of net income/
expenditure.
 
If a decline in fair value has been recognized in 
equity in respect of an AFS instrument and there is 
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, then 
the cumulative loss recognized in equity is reversed 
from equity and reflected in profit or loss even if 
the financial asset has not been derecognized. An 
impairment loss recognized on an investment in an 
equity instrument classified as AFS is not reversed 
through profit or loss. However, for any other AFS 
instruments, if in a subsequent period the fair value 
increases and the increase can be objectively linked 
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is 
reversed, with the reversal reflected in profit or loss.

Classification between debt and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified according 
to the substance of the contractual arrangements 
entered into.

equity instruments

An equity instrument represents a contract that 
evidences a residual interest in the net assets of 
the Corporation. Equity instruments issued by the 
Corporation are recorded at the proceeds received, 
net of direct issue costs.

financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial 
liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

financial liabilities at fVtPl

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when 
the liability is either incurred for trading or is a 
derivative that does not satisfy the criteria for hedge 
accounting or is designated at FVTPL. A financial 
liability is designated at FVTPL on initial recognition 
if this designation provides more useful information 
because:
•	 it eliminates or significantly reduces a 

measurement or recognition inconsistency (i.e. 
an accounting mismatch); or

•	 the financial liability forms part of a group of 
financial assets, financial liabilities or both, that 
is managed and its performance evaluated on a 
fair value basis in accordance with a documented 
risk/investment management strategy, and 
information regarding this grouping is reported 
internally to key management on this basis.

In addition, if a contract contains one or more 
embedded derivatives, the entire contract can be 
designated at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized at fair 
value. Any subsequent gains or losses are recognized 
in profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities which have been designated 
at FVTPL consist of trade creditors due in respect 
of purchase of concentrate. The reason for this 
designation is that these liabilities due to the third 
parties are based on concentrate purchased from 
them which is only priced three months into the 
future. The pricing is thus dependent on commodity 
and exchange rate movements in the interim period. 
Consequently, the liability is initially reflected at fair 
value. This liability is then re-measured on a monthly 
basis based on the movement in the forward curves 
of commodity prices and exchange rates. Any gains/
losses on the re-measurements are reflected in 
cost of sales. Financial liabilities which are regarded 
as held-for-trading comprise the foreign forward 
exchange contracts which have not been designated 
as hedges.

other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recorded initially at the 
fair value of the consideration received, which is cost 
net of any issue costs associated with the borrowing. 
These liabilities are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account 
any issue costs and any discount or premium on 
settlement.

Borrowings, obligations under finance leases and 
trade and other payables have been classified as 
other financial liabilities.  

loan commitments

Loan commitments provided at below market 
interest rates are measured at initial recognition at 
their fair values and if not designated at FVTPL, are 
subsequently measured at the higher of:
•	 the amount of the obligation in terms of the 

contract as determined in accordance with IAS 37  
(Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets); or

•	 the amount initially recognised less the cumulative 
amortisation recognised in accordance with IAS 
18 – Revenue.

6.9 foreign currencies

The United States dollar (US$) is the functional 
currency of the Corporation. Foreign currency 
transactions are recorded at the spot rate of exchange 
on the transaction date. At the end of the period, 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at rates of exchange ruling 
at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities carried at fair value are translated at the rate 
of exchange ruling at the date of determining the fair 
value. Non-monetary items that are denominated in 
foreign currencies and measured at historical cost 
are not retranslated. Foreign exchange differences 
arising on monetary items are reflected in profit or 
loss except in limited circumstances.

The financial position of the Corporation’s foreign 
operations is translated into US$, using the exchange 
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period. 
Income and expenses are translated at the average 
exchange rates for the period. If the exchange rates 
fluctuate significantly, then the items are translated 
at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the 
transaction. All resulting exchange differences on the 
Corporation’s foreign operations are recognized in 
other comprehensive income.

6.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to interest paid. When 
borrowings are utilized to fund qualifying capital 
expenditure, such borrowing costs are capitalized 
in the period in which the capital expenditure and 
related borrowing costs are incurred.

6.11 employee Benefits

6.11.1 short-term employee benefits
Remuneration paid to employees in respect of services 
rendered during a reporting period is recognized as 
an expense in that reporting period. Accruals are 
made for accumulated leave and are measured at the 
amount that the Corporation expects to pay when the 
leave is used.

6.11.2 termination benefits
Termination benefits are charged against income 
when the Corporation is demonstrably committed 
to terminating the employment of an employee 



DPC AnnuAl RepoRt 2013
54

or Corporation of employees before their normal 
retirement date.

6.11.3 Post-employment benefits

defined contribution plans

Retirement, provident and pension funds Contributions 
to defined contribution plans in respect of services 
rendered during a reporting period are recognised as 
an expense in that period.
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dePosIt ProteCtIon CorPoratIon

statement of CashfloWs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 
(us$)

2012 
(us$)

7. Investment income

Interest income:

Bank deposits 27 431 24 525

Available for sale investments 138 620 33 102

166 051 57 627

8. other income

Interest on staff loans 11 697 14 743

Sundry income 2 038 541 16 370

2 050 238 31 113

9. operating expenses

Included in the statement of profit or loss for the year are 
the following items:

Administration expenses:

•	 Utilities 17 074 18 026

•	 Cell phone charges and internet services 15 714 15 014

•	 Other administration expenses 187 548 149 988

Staff costs (note 9.1) 2 049 328 1 443 953

Operating lease payments (note 10) - 34 738

                       Other expenses:

•	 Board fees 25 880 25 268

•	 Audit fees:  statutory audit 25 000 21 505

                      2011 under provision - 20 125

•	 Depreciation 60 328 56 523

•	 Consultancy fees 15 737 11 034

•	 Foreign travel 144 055 138 216

•	 Subscriptions to professional organizations 17 196 16 534

•	 Repairs and maintenance 23 153 28 271

•	 Liquidation expenses 12 924 -

2 593 937 1 979 195

9.1 staff costs

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 1 937 579 1 373 934

National Social Security Authority cost 16 808 8 461

Pension costs 94 941 61 558

2 049 328 1 443 953
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10. operating lease payments

The Deposit Protection Corporation lease of premises 

from Mining Industry Pension Fund was terminated 

on 31 May 2012. Lease payments for 2012 were 

US$34 738. 

11. Pension fund 

Contributions are made to the following funds by 

both employees and the Corporation:

the deposit Protection Corporation Pension 
fund

 
The pension fund to which all permanent employees 

and the Corporation contribute to is a defined 

contribution plan which is administered by Old 

Mutual Zimbabwe. This fund is subject to the 

Pension and Provident Funds Act (Chapter 24:09). 

2013 2012

us$ us$

Pension fund 94 941 61 558

National Social Security 
Authority

16 808 8 461

111 749 70 019

Contributions by the Corporation amount to 12% and 

those by employees amount to 6% of pensionable 

emoluments.

national social security authority 

The Corporation and its employees contribute to 

the National Social Security Authority scheme. This 

is a social security scheme which was promulgated 

under the National Social Security Authority Act 

(Chapter 17:04). The Corporation’s obligations 

under the scheme are limited to specific contribution 

legislated from time to time.

The Corporation’s contributions to both funds were:

Year ended 31 december 2013

Vehicle

us$

Office 

equipment

us$

Computer 

equipment

us$

Computer 

equipment

us$

furniture 

and fittings

us$

Building

us$

Deemed cost at 1 January 2013  714 7 953 42 437 39 796 896 113 987 013

Additions 40 641 8 748 33 434 14 429 - 97 252

Disposals - - (117) (8) - (125)

Depreciation charge (3 436) (4 305) (20 665) (6 748) (25 174) (60 328)

net book value 37 919 12 396 55 089 47 469 870 939 1 023 812

at 31 december 2013

Cost 95 610 29 628 101 303 86 034 919 481 1 232 056

Accumulated depreciation (57 691) (17 232) (46 214) (38 565) (48 542) (208 244)

net book value  37 919 12 396 55 089 47 469 870 939 1 023 812

12. Property, vehicles and equipment

There is no impairment of assets required from an assessment performed at the reporting date.
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12. Property, vehicles and equipment

There is no impairment of assets required from an assessment performed at the reporting date.

Year ended 31 december 2012

Vehicles 

us$

Computer

equipment

us$

furniture 

equipment

us$

furniture 

and fittings

us$

Building

us$

tOtaL

us$

Deemed cost at 1 January 2012  8 942 997 28 881 10 624 840 000 889 444

Additions - 8 275 34 406 38 659 79 481 160 821

Disposals - - (6 681) (48) - (6 729)

Depreciation charge (8 228) (1 319) (14 169) (9 439) (23 368) (56 523)

net book value  714 7 953 42 437 39 796 896 113 987 013

at 31 december 2012

Cost 54 969 20 880 70 857 71 811 919 481 1 137 998

Accumulated depreciation (54 255) (12 927) (28 420) (32 015) (23 368) (150 985)

net book value  714 7 953 42 437 39 797 896 113 987 013

13. financial assets

2013 2012
us$ us$

At 1 January 828 763 -
Additions 2 548 116 817 995
Accrued interest 34 455 10 788
At 31 December 3 411 334 828 763

                              
Analysis of financial assets:
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss 
(fVtpL)
Non-derivative financial assets designated as at FVTPL (i) 3 236 357 665 262

Held to maturity investments carried at amortized cost

Bills of exchange (ii) 174 977 163 461
3 411 334 828 763

i) The Corporation holds unit trusts through Old 
Mutual in the Equity Fund and Money Market 
Gross Fund. These have been measured at fair 
value at the reporting date.

ii) The Corporation holds bills of exchange at a rate 
of 11% with the Commercial Bank of Zimbabwe 
(CBZ) and 10% with Zimbabwe Allied Banking 
Group (ZABG). The deals have maturity dates 
ranging from 3 to 6 months from the end of the 
reporting period. None of these assets had been 
past due or impaired at the end of the reporting 
period.

Other receivables are due within twelve months from 
the reporting date.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting 
date is the fair value of receivables mentioned 
above. The Corporation does not hold any collateral 
as security. The carrying amount of trade and other 
receivables approximate fair value.
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14. trade and other receivables

2013 2012
us$ us$

Trade receivables 8 180 144 837 421
Other receivables 228 002 258 445

8 408 146 1 095 866
There were no impairment allowances for the year ended 2013.

age of receivables that are past due but not impaired
Receivables are as follows:
Less than 30 days 4 740 143 634 710
Between 31 – 90 days 1 223 406 46 509
Greater than 90 days 2 216 595 156 202

8 180 144 837 421

2013 2012

us$ us$

Cash on hand 814 375

Cash at bank 352 133 83 567

352 947 83 942

15. Cash equivalents

16. Borrowings

Bank loan

Non - current portion 242 937 306 204

Current portion 63 267 63 267

Borrowings are secured by a mortgage over the 
Corporation’s building. The borrowings are from the 
Commercial Bank of Zimbabwe (CBZ), repayable 
in equal instalments over a five year period. The 
weighted average effective interest rate on the bank 
loan is 9.20% per annum.

•	 Other receivables are due within twelve months from the reporting date.
•	 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of receivables mentioned above. 

The Corporation does not hold any collateral as security.
•	 The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate fair value.
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17. trade and other payables

18. Provision for protection payments

2013 2012
us$ us$
814 375

Leave pay provision 125 244 82 781
Other accruals 99 412 24 326

224 656 107 107

2013 2012
us$ us$

Opening balance 492 927 -
Current year provision 328 516 492 927
Payments (289 775) -
Closing balance 531 668 492 927

19. related party transactions

20. financial instruments

2013 2012

us$ us$

Key management 
compensation shown 
below:

492 927 -

328 516 492 927

Salaries and other short-
term employee benefits

942 120 778 212

Defined contribution plan 45 189 32 563

987 309 810 775

20.1 significant accounting policies

Details of significant accounting policies, including 
the recognition criteria, the basis for measurement 
and the basis on which income and expenses are 
recognised, in respect of each category of financial 
asset, financial liability and equity instrument are 
disclosed under the note in accounting policies.

2013 2012
us$ us$

Loans to key management 155 669 172 941

2013 2012
us$ us$

financial assets
Cash and bank balances 352 947 83 942
Fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL)
Designated as at FVTPL 3 236 357 665 262
Held to maturity invest-
ments

174 977 163 461

Loans and receivables 8 408 146 1 095 866

financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 224 656 107 107
Borrowings 306 204 369 471

The carrying amount of trade and other payables 
approximate fair value.

The Corporation has provided several of its key 
management personnel with short-term loans at a 
rate of 6%. Further information has been set out 
below: 

The provision for protection payments represents 
the present value of the Directors best estimate of 
the future outflow of economic benefits that will be 
required under the Corporation’s obligations as set 
out in the Deposit Protection Corporation Act. The 
estimate has been made on the basis of the number 
of depositors in Royal Bank and Genesis as at the 
reporting date.
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fair value as at 31 

dec 2013

Financial assets at FVTPL 3 236 357 - - 3 236 357

Loans and receivables - 8 408 146 - 8 408 146

Held to maturity investments 174 977 - - 174 977

3 411 334 8 408 146 - 11 819 480

 

20.2 Categories of financial instruments
Details about the Corporation’s financial instruments and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 
31 December 2013 are as follows:

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 
during the year. 

20.3 Interest rate risk
The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk 
because the Corporation borrows funds at both 
fixed and floating interest rates. The Corporation’s 
exposures to interest rates on financial assets and 
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk 
management section of this note
 

20.4 liquidity risk  
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will 
be unable to meet a financial commitment in any 
location or currency. This risk is minimized through 
the holding of cash balances and financial assets 

(refer to note 14). In addition, detailed cash flow 
forecasts are regularly prepared and reviewed by 
management.  The cash needs of the Corporation 
are managed according to its requirements.
 
The following table details the Corporation’s remaining 
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The 
table has been compiled based on the undiscounted 
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest 
date on which the Corporation can be required to 
repay the liability. The cash flows include both the 
principal and interest payments. The adjustment 
column includes the possible future cash flows 
attributable to the financial instrument which are not 
included in the carrying value of the financial liability 
at reporting date.

Weighted 

average 

effective 

interest rate

Less than 12 

months

us$

1 to 5 years 

us$

+ 5 years 

us$

total 

us$

non derivative financial instruments 

2013

Interest bearing borrowings 9.20% 67 366 238 838 - 306 204

Trade and other payables N/A 224 656 - - 224 656

292 022 238 838 - 530 860

2012

Interest bearing borrowings 9.20% 63 399 306 092 - 369 471

Trade and other payables N/A 107 107 - - 107 107

170 506 306 092 - 476 578

20.5 Credit risk
Potential concentrations of credit risk consist primarily 
of short term cash investments and accounts 
receivable. Credit risk arises from the risk that a 
counter party may default or not meet its obligations 
timeously. The Corporation minimizes credit risk by 
ensuring that counterparties are banking institutions 
of the highest quality, that appropriate credit limits are 
in place for each counter party and that short term 

cash investments are spread amongst a number of 
different counterparties. Banking counterparty limits 
are reviewed annually by the Board.

The carrying amount of the financial assets represents 
the Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk 
without taking into consideration any collateral 
provided:
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2013 2012
us$ us$

Financial assets and other credit exposures
Other financial assets 3 411 334 828 763
Trade and other receivables 8 408 146 1 095 866
Cash and cash balance 352 947 83 942

12 172 427 2 008 571

21. going concern
The Directors have assessed the ability of the 
Corporation to continue operating as a going concern 
and believe that the preparation of these financial 
statements on a going concern basis is still appropriate. 
However, the Directors believe that under the current 
economic environment a continuous assessment of 

the ability of the Corporation to continue to operate 
as a going concern will need to be performed to 
determine the continued appropriateness of the 
going concern assumption that has been applied in 
the preparation of these financial statements.
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